INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

‘10 THE MEMRERS OF RAJASTHAN SUN TECHNIQUE ENERGY PRIVATRE IYMITED

Report on the Indian Aecounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements

L.

We have audited the accompanying {inancial statements of Rajasthan Sun Technique Encrgy
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balanee Sheat as al March 31, 2018 the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Othier Comprehensive Income), the Cash Ilow Statement
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for ihe year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policics and other explanatory information,

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statemenls

2.

Tlie Company's Board of Directors is respensible fur the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Aet, 2013 (“the Act”) with respecl to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
statements to give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (including
other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equily of the Company in accordanee
with the accounting principles gencrally accapted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards specified in the Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended)
under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of edequate
accounting rcenrds in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safegunarding of Lhe assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of edequate internal
financial controls, that were opevaling effectively for ensuring the acenrary and completeness of
the acenunling records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ol the Tad AS financial
stalements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Respongibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an apinian on these Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit.

We have taken inlo aceount the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder including
the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the andit
report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordavee with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act and othey applicable authoritative
pronouncements issued by the Institute of Charlered Accountants of India. Thosc Standards and
pronouncements require that we comply with ethieal requirenients and plan and perfurm the
audil to oblnin reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial slatements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performiug procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts aml the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures seleeted depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financinl
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In inaking those risk assessiments, the auditor
congiders internal financial conttrol relevant to the Company's preparation of the Ind AS findnedal
statements thai give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evalualing (ie appropriateness of the acconnting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Directors, as well as evalualing the uverall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.
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7.

We helieve lhal the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
Dbasis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion and to the hest of our inforimation and aceording to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a Lrue and fair view in conformity willi the aceounting principles gencrally
aceepled in India, of the state of affairs of the Conpany as at March 31, 2018, and its total
curnprehensive income (camprising ol loss and other comprehensive income), its cash fows and
the changes in equity forthe year ended on Lhat date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirenments

0.

10.

As required by the Compaaies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central Gavernment
of Indig in terms of sub-gection (11) of section 143 of the Act (“the Order”), and on the basis of
sucl checks of the books and records of the Company as we eonsidered appropriate and according
to the information and explanations given to us, we give n the Annexure B a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143 (3) of tlie Act, we report that:

(a) We have gought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of anr
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) 1n our opinion, praper books of aceount as required by law have been kepl by Lhe Company so
far a3 it appears from our examination of those books.

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement nt Profit and Loss (including other compreliensive incoine),
the Cash Flow Statement and the Stalement of Changes in Equity dealt with by Lhis Report
are in agrcemenl with the books of account,

{d) Inour opinion, the aforcsaid Ind AS financial slalements comply with thie Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Scrtion 133 of the Aect.

{e) Onthe basis of the written representations received from ihe directors as on March 31, 2018
taken on record by the Board of Dircctors, noue of the directors is disqualified as on
March 41, 2018 from being appoinled as a director in terms of Scetion 164 (2) of the Act.

(6) With vespeet Lo Lhe adeguacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating cffecliveness of such contrals, referto nur
separate Report in Annexure A,
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(g) Wilh respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with
Rue 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our knowledge and beliel and according to the information and cxplanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at Mareh 31, 2018 on
its financial position in its Ind AS financial slalements — Refer Note 5:

ii. The Company has made provision as at March 31, 2018, as required under the applicable law
or accounting standards, for material forcsceable losses, if any, on long-term contracts
including derivative eontracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required (o be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2018.

For Price Waterhouse
Tirm Registration Numher: 301112
Chartered Accountanis

Pi)’l_lslll Jdlandhara
Place: Mumbai Partuer
Date : April 19, 2018 Membership Number: 122351
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial eontrols with reference to financial statenients ol Rajasthan Sun

Technique Energy Private Limited (*ihe Company™) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit

of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on thal date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria cstablishied by the Company conaidering

the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Interna! Financial

Controls Over Finaneial Reporting issued hy the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenanee of adequate internal
financial controls that were operaling effectively for ensuring the orderly and elticient conduct of its
business, including adherence b company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and conipleteness of the accounting records, and Lhe
timely preparation of reliable finaneial information, as required under the Act.

Andilors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Campany's internal finaneial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Conlrols Over Financial Repnrting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent
applicable to an andil of internal financial contrnls, both applicable Lo an audit of internal financial
controls and both issued by the 1CAL Those Standards and the Guidanee Note require that we comply
wilh ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whelher adequate internal financial controls over finaneial reporting was eslablished and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material rospects,

4. Our audit involves performing procedures Lo obtain andit evidener about the adequacy uf the internal
financial controls system with reference Lo financial statements and {heir uperating effectivencss. Our
audit of internal finaneial controls with refercnee to financial stalements included obtaining an
undarstanding of internal finaneial controls with relerence to financial statements, assessing the risk
thal a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operaling effectiveness of
inlernal control based on the asscssed risk. The procedurcs sclected depend on Lhe auditor’s
judgement, including the assesstnent of the risks of material imisstaternent of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or exror.

5. We believe that the audit cvidence we have obtained is sufficiont and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statemaents.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company's internal financial eontrol with reference ta finaneial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable Assurance regarding the reliability of finaneial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally aceepted accounting
principles. A eompany's internal finaneial control with reference to financial statemenrts includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenanee of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transgactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally aceepted accounting prineiples, and that receipts and
cxpenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of manugement
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorisod acyuisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the tinancial slatements.

Inheveni Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with referenee to financial statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial contiols with reference to financial statements,
including the passihilily of vollusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstateinents due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projectinns of any evalualion
of the internal financial eontrols with relerence to financial statements to futurc periods are subject to
the risk that the internal finaneial conlrol with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of comipliance with the policics or
procedurces may deleriorate,

Opinion

8. 1n our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
svstem with reference to financial statementa and such inlernal financjal eontrols with reforence to
financial statements were operating cfteclively as at March 31, 2018, based on the inlecnal control with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components af inlernal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Finaneial Conlrols
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Aceountants of India.

For Price Waterhouse
Tirm Registration Number: 3o1112E
Chartered Accountants

Piyush Julandhara
Place: Mumbai Partner

Date ; April 19, 2018 Membecrship Nuinber: 122351
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Referred to in paragraph o of the Independent Andilors’ Report of even date to the members of

Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited on the Ind AS financial statcients as of arud for the vear
ended March 31, 2018

i.

1ii.

iv.

vi.

vii.

viii,

{a) The Company is mainlaining proper records showing [ull particulars, including quantitative

details and situation, of fixed asscts.

(b) The fixcd asscts of the Company have been physically verified hy the Management during the year

()

(«)

(h)

and no malerial diserepancies have been netiecd on such veritication. In our opinion, the
frequency of verilicalion is reasonable.

The title deeds of iminovabic praperties, as disclosed in Note 3.1 on Property, plant and
Lquipment to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

The physical verification of inventory have heen conducted al reasonable intervals by the
Management duriny the year. The diserepancies noliced on physical verification of inventory as
compared to book records were not material,

The Company has nol granted any loans, secured or unsceured, 1o companies, firms, Limited
Linhility Partoerships or other parties covercd in the register mairituined under Section 189 of the
Act, Therefore, the provisions of Clausc 3(iii), (iii)(w), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company.

‘The Company has not granted any loans or madc any invesimendy, or provided any guarantces o'
security to the parties covered under Scetion 185 and s86. Therefore, the provisions of Clause
3(iv) of the said Order are not applicahle lo the Company.

‘The Company has nol accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73,
74, 75 and 76 ol [he Act and the Rules framed there under Lo {he extent notified,

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Compary is required to
maintain cost records as speeificd under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products.
Howcver, acoording to the information and explanation given ta ws, Lhe prescribed aceounts and
reeords have not been made, since company has not started commercial operations.

According to the information and explanalions given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in respect of professional tax, gands and service tax. with effect from July 1, 2017,
incume tax , though there has been o slight delay in a (ew cases, and is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, service tax, and other material slatutory
dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

According Lo the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined hy us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales-tax, serviec-tax, duly of customs, and duty
of excise or value added Lax or goods and service tax which have not heen deposited on account of
any dispule. '

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of lnaus ur borrowings to any financial
institulion or bank or Government as at the balanee sheel date.

The Company has not raised any moueys by way of initial public offer, further pubiic offer
(inelnding debt instruanents) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the
Order are nut applicable to the Company.
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i,

Xii.

xiv,

Xvi.

During the course of our examination af 1he books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in Indin, and according to the
information and explanafions given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its nfficers or employees, noticed or reported during
the yeay, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

The provisions of Scetion 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public
companies. Accordingiy, the provisions of Clause 3(xa) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company snd the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to i, the
provisions of Clausc 3(xdi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Contpany has enlered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisiang
of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. "Lhe details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24,
Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act.

The Campany has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review, Accordingly, the provisions of Clause
3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has nol enlered into any non cash transactions with its directors or persons
connceind wilh him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Scetion 45-14A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1034, Accordingly, Lhe provisions of Clausc 3(xvi) ol Llhe Order are not applicable to the
Company.

For Price Waterhouse
Firm Registration Number: 3011125
Chartered Accommlants

Piyush Julandhara

Place: Mumbai Partner
Date : April 19, 2018 Membership Nmnber; 122351



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018

Particulars
ASSETS

Non-current asscts
Property, plant and aquipment
Capital work-in-progress
Other Intangible asscts
Financial assets
Darivative Instrumants
l.oans
Other non-current assets
Non Current tax assets (het)

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cesh end cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Loans
Other flnancial assets
Other cuirent assets

Total Assefs

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Equity share capital

Other equity
Instrument entirely equity in nature
Reserves and surplus

Liabilities
Nen-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Berrowings
- Provisions
Qther non-current liabilitics

Current liabilitics
Financial liabilities

Dther financlal liabilities
Other current liabiitics
Provisions
Current tax Liabilitles (net)

Total Equity and liabllities

Rupeas In lakhs

Note As at As at
No. March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
31 2,646 2,833
3.2 251,408 248,308
3.3 23 62
3.4(a) 739 1,104
3.4(b) 4 4
3.5 5,894 7.831
3.6 136 -
3.7 240 -
3.B{a) 5,065 4637
3.8(b) 457 332
3.8(c) 10,558 5,054
3.8(d) 149 154
3.8(e) 850 -
3.9 201 176
278,370 i 275,393
3.10 286 2B6
3.11.1 68,039 54,519
3.41.2 684,850 65,314
d.12 124,664 134,660
3.13 89 75
3.14 943 1,466
3.15 19,415 18,399
3.16 342 374
3.17 22 18
3.18 - 292
278,370 275393

@ Amount is below Lhe rounding off norm adopted by the Company,

Significant accounling policies
Notes on financial slatements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesc financial siatements.

2

1to 21
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As per our report of even dalte

For Price Waterhouse For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 301112 E

Piyush Jalandhara Shrikant D Kulkarni
Partner Diractor
Membership No. 122351 DIN Number: 05136399

Maatu Kumar Ghosh
Director
DIN Number 07644889

Place : Mumbal Place : Mumbai
Date : April 19, 2018 Date : April 19, 2018



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Siatement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2018

Rupees In lakhs

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Particulars Note
No.
Other Income 319

Total Income

Expenses
Finance casts 3,20
Depreciation and amaortlzation expenses
Generation, adminstration and other expenses 32

Total expenses
Loss before tax

Income tax expense
Current tax

Loss for the year

Other Comprehensive Income for the year

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Earnings/ (Loss) per equity share: (Face value of Rs. 10 each)

Basic 10

Diluted 10
Significant accounting policies 2
Notes on financial statemenis 1to 21

The accornpanylng notes are an integral part of these financial statements

651 697
851 697
918 1,779
115 129
84 -

1,115 1,908

(464) (1,211)
(464) (1,211)
(484) (1,211)
(16.25) (42.39)
(16.25) (42.39)
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For Price Waterhouse For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 301112 E

Piyush Jalandhara Shrikant D Kulkarnt
FPartner Director
Membership No. 122351 DIN Number: 05136399

tu Kumar Ghosh
ireclor
DIN Number 07644889

Place : Mumbai Place ; Mumbai
Date : April 19, 2018 Date : April 19, 2018



Ra)asthan Sun Technique Energy Privata Limited
Cash Flow Statemant for the year endod March 31, 2018

(A)

1G]]

(€

Iartlculats

Cash flow from/ (used |n) Operating activities
Nel Loss before tax
Adjustmenls for:

Intsrast Income

Finance coat

Deapreclalicn and amorlsalion expenses

Net cash generated from Operating acilvitics

Cash flow from/ (usad In) Investing activities

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (Including Capital work-in-progress and Capial
udvances)

Iimerest received

Taxes Pald net of rehmd

Increase / (Decreasa) In Bank balances other than cash and cesh equlvalents

Nct cash flow (used In) nvestiry activities
Cash tiow from! {used In) Financlng activities
Inter corporale deposht recelved
Repayment of borrewing - secured
Interest and finance charges paid
Net cash generelsa’ (used In) Flnancing activilles
Net Increase/ (decrease} in cash snd cash equlvalents (AHB+C)
Cash and cash equivelents at the beginning of the year:
Rank balance - current account®
Bank balance - fixad deposits aceount*
CGash and cash equlvalents at the cnd of the year:
Bank balance - current account*

Bank balancs - fixed deposits account*

* Induding Interest on lixed deposits dassiflad as cash ard cash cquivakents.

Rupeaes In lakhs

Year anded
March 31, 20138

Year ended
March 31, 2017

(484) (1.211)
(551) (697)
918 1,779
115 129
(84) -
6.106 {632)
316 837
. 174
(268) {9,894)
6,154 {9,775)
13,520 18,610
{(10,473) {10,578)
(8,982) (9,078)
{5,945) (1,144)
126 {10,919)
332 1,217
- 10,034
430 382
27 .

The statemenl of cash flow hes baan praparad under the 'Indirect Method' set out in Indian Accouriing Standands (Ind AS) - 7 "Statemsnl of Cash

Flows"

The accompanying notes are an inlegral part of thess financlals slatements.



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limlted
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For Price Waterhouse For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 301112 E

Plyu;eh'Jalandhara Shrikant D Kulkarni

Partner Director

Membership No. 122351 DIN Number: 05135399
Marffu Kumar Ghosh
Director

DIN Number 07644889

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbal
Date : April 19, 2018 Date : April 19, 2018
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Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Noftes to the flnancial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018

1) General information

Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited is a wholly cwned subsidiary of Rellancs Powser Limited. The
Company is a Special Purpose Vehicle fo develop 100 mega watt (M\W) Solar Goncentrated Thermal Power Projsct at
Dhursar, Near Pokhran, District Jaisalmer, Rajasthan. The Company has enlered Into a Power Purchase Agreement
(PPA) for 100 MW capacily with NTPC Vidyut Vyapar Nigam Limited (NVVN).

The Company Is a private limited Company which is incorporated and domiclled Ih India under the provisions of the
Companies Act. The registerad office of the Company is located at H Biock, 1st Floor, Dhirubhai Ambanl Knowledge
Cily, Navi Mumbai - 400710.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the board of directors on Apnil 18, 2018.
2) Significant accounting policies and critical accounting estimates and Judgments:
2.1 Basls of preparation, measurement and significant accountling policies

The principal accounting policles applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. Thase
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
Compliance with Ind AS

The financlal statements are In compliance, in all material agpects, with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the [Campanies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] and ather relevant provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder.,

As prescribed by the Ind AS, if the parficular Ind AS is not in conformity with the applicable laws, the provisions of the
said law shall prevail and financial statemenis shall be prepared In conformity with such laws. Consequently, the
Company has applied this norm while preparing the financial statements.

Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in ‘Indian Rupees’, which is algo the Company's functional currency and
all amounts are rounded to the nearast lakhs, unless othenwise staled.

Historical cost convention
The financial statsments have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the following:

« Certain financial assets and financial liabilities at falr value;
o Defined bensfit plans — plan assefs that are measured at fair value,

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to fransfer a liability in an arderly transaction
between market participants af the measurement date. The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the clrcumstances and for which sufficient data are availahle o measure fair value, maxdmising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of uncbsarvable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed In the financial statements are calegorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowesl leve! input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a wholc:

s Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) marikel prices in active markcts for Ideintical assels or liabilities

s Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

» Leval 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lovrest level inpot thal is significant to the fair value measurement
Is unobservable

Current vis-3-vis non-current ¢lagsification

The assels and liabilities reported in the balance sheet are classified on a “current/non-current basis”, with separate
reporting of assels held for sale and liabilifles. Current assets, which Include cash and cash equivalents, are assets
that are intended to be rezlized, sold or consumad during the normal operating cycle of the Company or in the 12
months following the balance sheel date; current liabilities are liabllifies that are expected to be seilled during the
normel operating cycle of the Company.orydlhin the 12 months following the close of the financlal year,
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(b} Recent accounting pronouncements

()

New standards or interpretations adopted by the Company

The Co‘mpany has applied fhe following amendment for the first time for its ennual reporting period commencing
April 1%, 2017:

Amendment to Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows”:

The amendment to Ind AS 7 requires the entltles to provide disclosures that enable users of standalone financial
statements to evaluate changes In liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cgash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconcilialion between the opening and dosing
balances in {he balance sheet for liabilitles arlsing from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement.

The adoption of these amendments ¢ld not have any impact on the amounts recaognised in prior periods. Wheh
the Company first applies these amendments, it is nol required to provide comparative information for preceding
periods.

Standards issued but not yet effective
Appendix B 1o Ind AS 21, Forelgn currency transactions and advance consideration:

On March 28, 2018, Minisiry of Corporate Affalrs ("MCA") has notified the Companies(Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Indl AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and
advance considerglion which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange
rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income, when an entity has received or paid
advance consideralion In a foreign currency. The amendmant will corne into force from April 1, 2018.

Ind AS 115- Revenus from Contract with Customers:

On March 28, 2018, Minisiry of Gorporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified the Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract
with Customers. The core principle of the new standard is that an entity should recognize revenue to depici the
{ransfer of promised goods or services lo customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entily expects to be entilled in exchange for those goods or services. Further the new standard requires
enhanced disclosures aboul the nalure, amount, timing and uncertainly of revenue and cash flows arising from
the entity's contracls with customers.

The Company is evalualing the requirements of the amendment and the impact on the financial siatements is
being evaluated.

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is caried at historical cosl. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at histerical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that Is direcily attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Subscquent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
approprlate, only when It is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item wiil flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured rcliably. The carying amount of any component accountsd
far as a separale asset is derecogniscd when replaced. All olhar repairs and mainienance are charged to profit or
loss during the reporling period in which they are Incurred.

Expenditure incurred on assels which are nol ready for their intended use camprising direct cost, related
incidental expenses and atiributable borrowing cost are disclosed under Capital Work-in-Progress.

Accordingly all praject related expenditure viz, civil works, machinery under ereclion, construction and erection
materials, pre-operative expenditure incidental / directly attributable {o construction of project, borrowing cost,
construction stores, and direct operational expenses (net of revenue during construclions) related to the units of
power generated in the interim period, pending caplialisalion, are disclosed as Capllal work-in-progress.
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(d)

{e)

)

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives ad residual value;

Depreclation on PPE is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on Written Down Method (WDV) based on
useful life of the following assets as preseribed In Part C of Schedule 1l to the Companiss Act, 2013 except in
respect of Plant and equipment where useful life has been estimatec as 25 years based on Internal assessment
and technicel evalualion by management.

Particulars ) Estimated useful lives
Buildings 3 lo 30 years _
Lease hold Land Qver the lease years
Properly, Plant and Equipment ' 31025 years

Furniture and fixtures . ) 10 years

Motor Vehicles 3 to 8 years

Oftice Equipments 3 to 10 vears
Computers ) 3 to 5 years

In respect of additions or extensions forming an integral part of existing assets and insurance spares, including
Incremental cosl arising on account of franslation of foreign cunrency llabllities for acquisition of Fixed Assels,
depreciation is provided as aforesald over the residual life of the respective assets,

Estimaled usefu! lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewsd annually, taking into acoount
commerdial and technologlcal obsolescence as well as normal wear and fear and ad|usted prospectively, if
appropriate.

Lease hold land is amortised over the lease period from the date of receipt of advance possession or execution of
lease deed, whichever is earddier.

Intangible assets:

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes less accumulated amartizalion /
depletion and impairment loss, if any. The cost comprises of purchase price, borrowing costs and any cost
directly atiributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use and adjustment arising from
exchange rate variation atttibutable to the inlangible assets.

Expenditure incurred on acquisition of intangible assels which are noi ready to use at the reporting date is
disclosed under “intangible assets under development”,

Amortisation methad and periods

Amortization Is charged on a straight-line basis over a period of three years. The estimated useful life and
amortization method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
the estimate being accounted for on a prospeclive basis.

Impairment of non-financlal assets

Assets which are subject {o depreciation or amortisation are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicaie that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the assel’s carrying amount exceeds iis recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an assef's fair value less cosls of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assels are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separalely identifieble cash inflows which are largely
Independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets olhar than goodwill 1hat suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the
end of each reporting period.

Trade Receivahle

Trade reccivables are recognised initizlly at fzir value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective inferest metlhod, less provisien for Impairment.
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{g) Financial instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a flnancial liability or
equily instruments of another entity.

Investments and other financial assets

1.

iii.

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categorles:
» those to be measured subsequently at fair valuc (either through olher comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and
« those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, galns end losses will either be racorded in profit or loss or other
comprehengive income. For investments in debl instruments, this will depend on the business modsl in
which the investment is held. The Company has elected to account for investments in equlty instruments of
fellow subsidiaries at cost In lfs financial stalements.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when ils business model for managing those
assets changes.

Measurement

Al initial recogniflon, the Company measures a finandal asset al its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
assel not at fair value through profit or loss, fransaction costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition
of ihe financlal asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at falt value through profit or loss are
expensed In profil or loss.

Debt Instruments: Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business
model for managing the asset and lhe cash flow characterstics of the assel. There are ihree measurement
categories into which the Campany classilies ifs debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash fiows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that Is subsequently measured at amortised cosl is recogniscd In prefit or loss when the asgset is
derecognised or Impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in financa income using
the effective interesl rale method,

Falr value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of
cohtractuel cagh flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assels' cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at falr value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognilion of
impairment gains or losses, interesi revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised
in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derccognised, the cumulative gain or loss praviously
recognised in OCI Is reclessified from equlty to profit or loss and recognisad In other gains/ (losses). Interest
Income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assels that do not rneet the criteria for amontised cosl or
FVOCI are measureq at fair valuc thraugh profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss Is recognised in profit or loss In the period in
which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Impairment of financlal assets

The Company assessss on a forward looking basis {he expected credit losses agsociated with Its assels
carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied clepends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financlal
Instruments, which requlres expecled lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables. : -
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iv. Derecognition of financlal assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when:

* The Company has transferred ihe rights to reacive cash flows from the financial asset or
» retains the contractual rights {o receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual

obligation 1o pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluales whether it has transferced substantially ali
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised.
Where the enlity has not fransferred substantially ell risks and rewards of ownershlp of the financial asset,
the financlal asset is not derecognised. Where the entily has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains
substantially ell risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financlal asset is derecognised if
{he Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Whizre ihe Company refains conliol of the
financlal assst, the asset is continued to be recognised to {he extent of continuing involvement in the

financial asset.
V. Income recognition

Iniersst income

Interest income from debt Instrumenls Is recognised using the effectiva interest rate method. The effective
interest rate Is the rate that exaclly discounts estimated future cash raceipis through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate,
the Company estimates the axpected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividend

Dividends are recognised in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount
of the dividend can be measured refiably.

vi. Derivative Financial Instruments:

Derivative are initially recognised at fair value on the date of derivative contract is entercd Into and are
subsequently re-measure to Lheir fair value at Ihe end of lhe each reporting period. Furlher gain / (losses)
arising on settlement and fair value change on derivative coniracts are classified to finance cost.

{h) Offsetting Financlal instruments

Financlal assels and liabilities are offsat and the net amount is reported In the balance sheet where there is a
fegally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there Is an intention fo seltle on a nel basis or
realise the asset and settle the llability simultaneously. The legally enfiorceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or

bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

(iy Contributed cquity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equily as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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(Y Flnancial liabilities

Clasgification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are clagsified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definition of a finandal liability
and an equity insirument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest In the assets of an entity afler
deducting all of its liabililies.

Initial recaghition and measurement

All financiel liabiliies are recognised Initially at fair value and, In the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, nef of directly attributable transaction coste.

The Company's financial llabilities include trade and other payables, foans and borrowings induding bank
averdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of finandial liabiliies depends on their classification, as described below:

Borrowings: Borrawings are subsaguently carried at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds
{net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised Ih the statemenl of profit and loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interast method.

Fees pald on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised &s transaction cosls of the losn 1o the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facilily will be drawn down. In thie case, Lhe fee Is deferred until the
draw-down ocaurs. To the exient there is no evidence that It is probable that some or all of the facility will he
drawn down, the fee is capltalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of
the facility 1o which it relates.

Trade and other payable: Thase amounts represent obligations to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from supplisrs. These payable are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within ons year or less olherwise they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade and
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financlal guarantee contracts: Financial guarantee contract are subsequently measured at the higher of
the amount determined in accordance with Ind AS 37 and the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation, where appropriate.

Derecognition

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified In the contract is

discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference belween the carrying amount of a financial liability that

has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets Iransferred or liabilities essumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/(losses).

When an existing financial liability Is replaced by another from the: same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing llabilily are subslantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liabllity. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in Ihe statement of prafit or loss.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilittes unless the Company has an uncondilional right to defer
setllement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a
material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the raporling period with the
effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity docs not dassify the
abllity as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial
statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.
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(k)

{n

Provisians, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:;
Provisions

Provislans are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required 1o settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discaunt rale used to determine the prasent
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time valus of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase In the provision due to the passage of lirne is recognised as Interest expense.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is & possible obligation arising from past events, the exislence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more unceriain fulure events not
wholly within the control of the Company. A present obligalion that arises from past events where it is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or reliable estimate of ihe amount cannot be mads,
is termad as contingent liability.

Contingent Assets;

A contingent assel is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probabls.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
a quelifying asset are capktalised during the period of time 1hat is required to complets and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assels are assets thal necessarily (ake a substantial period of lime to get
ready for their intended use or sale,

Investment Income camed on the temporary Investment of specific bomowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets Is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation,

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are Incurred.

{m} Forelgn currency translation:

i

Functional and presentation currency

ftems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using {he currency of the primary

economic envlronment in which the Company operatas (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements
are presenled n ‘Indian Rupees’ (INR), which is the Company's functional and ihe Company's presentation
currency

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional cuirency using the exchange rates prevailing
al ihe dates of thc transactions.

All exchange differences arising on reporling of short terrm foreign currency monetary items other than
derivative confracts at rates different from those at which they were initialty recorded are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and L.oss/ Capital Work-in-Progress.

In respecl of foreign exchange differences ansing on revaluation or setllement of iong term foreign currency
monelary ifems, the Company has availed the option avallable in the Ind AS-101 to continue the policy
adopted in Previous GAAP for accounting of exchange differences. arising from translation of long-lerm
foreign currency monctary iterns outstanding as on March 31, 2013, wherein:

+  Foreign exchange differences on account of depreciable asset, is adjusted In the cost of depreciable assel
and would be deprecialed over the balance life of asset.

+ In other cases, foreign exchange dilfarence is accumulated in "foreign currency monelary item transtation
differsnce account” and amortised over the balance period of such long term asset / liabilities,

Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency are stated at the rates prevalling on the date of the
transactions / exchange rate at which fransaction is actually effected.
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(n)

(o)

Revenue recognition:

Revenue i8 measured at the falr value of the consideration received or receivable. The Company recognises
revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it Is probable that future economic benefils will
flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s activities. Amounts disclosed as
revenus are net of discounts, retums; value added taxes and amounts collacted on behalf of third parties.

Sale of energy

Revenue from sale of energy Is recognised on an accrual basis and in accordance with the provisions of Power
Purchase Agreement (PPA) with NTPC Vidyut Vyapar Nigam Limited (NVVN) read with Central Elsctricity
Regulatory Commission (GERC) regulations (Also refer note 2.1 (<) above).

i. Other operating income

Revenue from eertified reduciion units is recognised as per ferms and conditions agreed with trustee on future
sale of certified emission reduclion units.

Employee beneflts:
Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, Including non-monetary benefits thiat are expected to be settled wholly within 12
months after the end of the period in which the employzes render the: related service are recognised in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are setfled. The liabilifies are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance
sheet,

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilitles for earned leave and gick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 monihs after the end
of the period in which the employees render the related sarvice. They are therefore measured as the present
value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the
reporiing period using the projacted unit credit melhod. The benefits are discounted using the market ylelds at the
end of the reporting period that have terms approximaling to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements
as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss/
Capital Work-in-Progress.

The obligations are presented as current liabililies in the balance sheet if ihe entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer setilement for at least twelve months after the reporling period, regardless of when
the aciual settlement is expected to occur.

Post employec obllgations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
- defined benefit plans such as gratuily
- defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity obligations

The liability or asset rocoghlsed in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratully plans is the present
value of the defined benefit obligalion at the end of the reporling period less the fair value of plan assets. The
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuariss using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in rupees is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflaws by reference to market yields at the end of Lhs reporting period on government
bonds thal have terms approximating 1o the terms of the related obligation.

The nel interest costis calculaled by applying the discount rate to (he net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the falr value of plan assets. This cast is included in employec benefit expense in the statement of
profit and loss/ capital work in progress.

Remcasurement gains and losses arlsing from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in lhe period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are Included in
retained earnings in the stalement of changes in equity and in the baleince sheet,

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligafion resulting from plan amendments or curtailments
are recognised immediately in profit or loss as pasl service cost.



Rajasthan Sun Technigque Encrgy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018 (continued)

(P

(a)

{r)

Defined contribution plans

Provident fund

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations.
The Company has no further payment obligations once the confributions have been paid, The contributions are
accounied for as defined contribution plans and the candributions are recognised as employee benefil expanse
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an assel {o the exient that a cash refund or a
reduction In the future payments is available.

Superannuation

Cenrtaln employees of the Company are participants in a defined contribution plan. The Company has no further
obligations to the plan beyond its monthly cantributions which are contributed to a trust fund, ihe corpus of which
is Invesied with Reliance Life Insurance Company Limited.

Incoms tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s laxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assels and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current Income tax charge is calculaled on the basls of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at Ihe
end of the reporiing period in the countries where the Company operale and generate taxable income,
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in ax returns with respect to situalions in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where approprate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authoritles.

Deferred incoms tax is provided In full, on temporary differences arising beiween the tax base of assets and
llabilities and their carrying amounts in {he financial statements. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liabilily in a transaction other than a business combination that at ihe
time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor faxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and lews) {hat have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred Income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tex liability is setled.

Deferred tax assets are recognissd for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if il is
probable that future taxable amounts will be availabie 1o utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax assets and 1ax liabilities are offsel where the entity has a legally enforceable right {o
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assct and setils he liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred fax is recognised in profil or loss, except 10 the exioent that it relates 1o items recognised in
other comprehensive income or dirsctly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in olher comprehensive
income or dircctly in equity, respectively.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents, deposits held at call
with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturitiss of three months or
less from date of acquisition thal are readily convertible to known amounis of cash and which are subject to an
Insignificant risk of changes in value.

Earnings per share

Basic earnlngs per share

Basle eamings per share is calculated by dividing:

- the profit atiributable to owners of the Company

- by the weightad average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted eamings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of hasic earmings per share to take inta
account:

- the after income tax effect o interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares,
and

- the weighted average number of addiflonal equily shares that weuld have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potentlal equity-shares.
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()

(1)

(W)

v)

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit be:fore tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The
cash flows from operating, invesling and financing activities of the Company are segregaled based on the
avallable information.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided {o the chief
operaling decision-maker, The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operaling segments, has been identified as the chief exscutive officer and the chief
financial officer that makes strategic decisions,

Dividends

Provision Is made for the amount of any dividend dedlared, being appropriately authorised and ne longer at the
discretion of the entily, on or before the end of the reporting perfod but not distributed at the end of the reporting
period.

Inventorles:

Inveniories of fools, stores, spares parts, consumable supplies and fuel are valued at lower of weighted average

cost, which includes all non refundable duties and ¢harges incurred in bringing the goods to their present location
and condition, and net realizable value afler providing for obsclescence and other losses.
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2.2 Critlcal accounting estimates and judgments

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Preparing the financial statements under Ind AS requires management to take decisions and make
estimates and assumptions that may impac! the value of revenues, costs, assets and liablilties and (he related
disclosures concerning the items Involved as well as confihgent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date.
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on hislorical experience and other factors,
including expectations of fulure events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,

The Company make estimates and assumptions concerning the future, The resulting accounling estimates vdll,
by definition, seldom equal the related actual resulis. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment 1o the carrying emounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Useful lives of Power plant and depreciation method

Management of the Company decided the estimated usefui lives of power plant and respective depreciation. The
accounting estimate ks based on the expacted wears and tears incurred during power generation, Wears and
tears can be slgnificanily differant following renovation each time. When the useful lives differ from the original
eslimated useful lives, management will adjust ihe estimated useful lives accordingly. It is possible that the
esiimates made based on existing experience are different to the actual outcomes within the next financial period
and could chuse a malerial adjustment to the carrying amount of Properly, plant and equipments (Refer nofe
3.1).

Income taxes

There are trangactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination Is uncertain and would get
finalized on completion of assessment by tax authorities. Where the final tax outcome is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred 1ax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax on temporary differences reversing within the tax holiday period is measured at {he tax rates that are
expected 1o apply durng the tax holiday period, which is the the nil tex rate. Deferred tax on temporary
differences reversing after the tax holiday period is measured af the enacted or substantively snacted tax rates
ihat are expected to-apply after the tax holiday period {Refer note 11).

Fair value measurement and valuation process

The management determines the appropriate valualion technigue and inputs for fair value measurement. In
eslimating the fair vaiite, the management engages third party qualified valuer to perform the valualions if
require.

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated. They are based on historlcal experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial Impact on the Company and that are
belleved to be reasonable under the circumstances (Refer note 12).

impairment of assets

At the end of each reporling period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its Property, plant and
equipment to delermine whelher there is any indication thet those assels have suffered an impairment loss, If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amount of Property, plant and eguipment is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. Value in use Is usually determined on the basis of discounted estimated future cash flows. This
involves management estimates on anticipated efficlency of the plant, fuel availabllity at economical raics,
economic and regulafory environment, discount rates and other factors, Any subscquent changes to cash flow
due to changes in the above mentioned factars could impact the carrying value of assets,
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Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited

Notes lo the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018 (continued)

3.2 Gapital Work in Prograss

Rupees In lakhs

Particulars As at Incuryed during Capltalised / As at
Narch 31, 2017 the year Adjusted March 31, 2018
A. Assets under eonstruction 172,796 2,696 - 176,492
B. Incidental expenditure pending allocation
{i) Expenses
interest and Flnancs Charges 45,070 8,085 - 53,158
Employee benefit axpensos
- Salary, bonus and olirer allowance 3,434 646 - 4,080
- Contribution to provident and cther funds 134 25 - 159
- Leave encashment and yratuity (Refer Note 7) 108 16 - 121
Lepgal and professional fess (including share service charyes) 2,487 289 - 277
Depraciallon/ amortisation expaenses 1,408 218 - 1,624
Exchange loss/(galn) (net) (rafer Nota no. 2.1.{m) and 18) 20,368 335 - 20,703
Gthar divest and Incidental axpenditure 15,752 1,913 - 17,665
Sub fotal 83,768 11,625 - 100,204 |
() Incidental income during construction 13,248 11,120 - 24,368
Nel expenditure pending allocation (i) - (1i) 76,510 406 - 76,918
[Total (A+B} 248,306 3,102 - 251408
. AB at Incurred during Gapitalised As at
Particutars March 31, 2016 the yaar fAdjusted | March 31,2017
A. Assets under conalfruction 170,412 2,384 - 172,796
B. Incidental expenditure pending allocation
(1) Expenses
Interest and Finance Charges 36,230 8,840 - 45,070
Employae benefit axpanscs
- Salary, borws and ather allowance 2,787 687 - 3,434
- Contribution fo provident and other funds 104 30 - 134
- Leave sncaghment and gratuily (Refer Nots 7) 62 43 - 105
Lagal and profcssional fees (including share service charges) 2,197 280 - 2,487
Dapreclation/ amertisation expenses 1142 288 1,408
Exchangc loss/(gain) (net) (refer Note 2.1.(m) and 18) 23,419 (3,051) - 20,368
Gther direct and incidantal cxpenditure 13,684 2,068 - 15,752
Sub total 78,575 8,184 - BB,758
(ii) Incidental Income during conslruction £,669 7.67¢ - 13,248
Nei expendl{ure pehding allacation (i) - (i) 74,006 1,604 - 755610
Total (A+B) 244,418 3,688 - 249,306




Rajasthan Sun Technigue Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financlal statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018 (continued)

3.3 Other Intangible assets
Rupces In lakhs

Computer Software

Carrylng amount

As at March 31, 2018 2
Additions during the year 84
Carrying amount as at March 31, 2017 96

Additions during the year -

Carrying amount as at March 31, 2018 96
Accumulated amotrtisation

As at March 31, 2016 2
For the year 32
Balance as at March 31, 2017 34
For the year 39
Balance as at March 31, 2018 73

Net carrying amount

As at Merch 31, 2017 62
As at March 31, 2018 23




Ralesitian Sun Technlgue E_nemy Private Limlted
Notes to 1he financial slatcments as of and for the year epded March 31, 2018 (coutinuexl)
Rupeas In lokhs

As at As at
Partlculars tarch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Finance assels - Non-current
(Unsocwed and canslderad good)
3.4(a) Denvallve assals (Mark to Narkel) on dorvallve inst-uments {Nel 739 1,504
738 1,104
d.41b) Loans
Sacurity deposils 4 4
4 4
3.5 Other non-current nseets
{Unsccured vl censlderad good)
Capltal advances (refer nole D) 5864 7.831
B,B94 7,831
3.6 Non Gurrent tax assets (net)
Curronl lax &93ela (refer note 11) 138 -
136 -
3.7 lnventories
Blores and spares 240 -
240 -
3.8(a) Trade recetvabloe
(Unsacured and considerad good)
*Olhers 5.065 4,837
5,005 4,637
3.8(b) Cagh and cash equivalents
Balance with bankas; :
In cunrent eccount 430 332
In daposit acsonnt w.th original makhwr|ly of le9s than (hree months 27 ~
457 332
3.8{c} Bank balances plher {han cush and cash equivalents
Deposha with orlginad maturily of more than threa months bu! lass than twslve montie 10,658 9,954
10,658 9 954
8.6(d) Current Loana
(Unsccurod and consldered good)
Sacurlty deposits 149 14D
|.oans to employees - 5
149 164
3.8(e) Other current financial assets
(Unuzcured and censldered fjood)
Othar Racaivabics 100 -
Derlvative aszels (Mark 1o Markat) on derivallve Insinuments (Net) 750 -
860
3.8 Other 2urrént assels
{Unsecured and congldered godd)
Advance recowvarable in cash or in Knd 24 5C
Batanca with statutory aulhoritios (Includes service tax credit and VATAGST recoverablc) k| 2
Prepald axgansas 174 124

201 176
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Ralesitian Sun Technlgue E_nemy Private Limlted
Notes to 1he financial slatcments as of and for the year epded March 31, 2018 (coutinuexl)
Rupeas In lokhs

As at As at
Partlculars tarch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Finance assels - Non-current
(Unsocwed and canslderad good)
3.4(a) Denvallve assals (Mark to Narkel) on dorvallve inst-uments {Nel 739 1,504
738 1,104
d.41b) Loans
Sacurity deposils 4 4
4 4
3.5 Other non-current nseets
{Unsccured vl censlderad good)
Capltal advances (refer nole D) 5864 7.831
B,B94 7,831
3.6 Non Gurrent tax assets (net)
Curronl lax &93ela (refer note 11) 138 -
136 -
3.7 lnventories
Blores and spares 240 -
240 -
3.8(a) Trade recetvabloe
(Unsacured and considerad good)
*Olhers 5.065 4,837
5,005 4,637
3.8(b) Cagh and cash equivalents
Balance with bankas; :
In cunrent eccount 430 332
In daposit acsonnt w.th original makhwr|ly of le9s than (hree months 27 ~
457 332
3.8{c} Bank balances plher {han cush and cash equivalents
Deposha with orlginad maturily of more than threa months bu! lass than twslve montie 10,658 9,954
10,658 9 954
8.6(d) Current Loana
(Unsccurod and consldered good)
Sacurlty deposits 149 14D
|.oans to employees - 5
149 164
3.8(e) Other current financial assets
(Unuzcured and censldered fjood)
Othar Racaivabics 100 -
Derlvative aszels (Mark 1o Markat) on derivallve Insinuments (Net) 750 -
860
3.8 Other 2urrént assels
{Unsecured and congldered godd)
Advance recowvarable in cash or in Knd 24 5C
Batanca with statutory aulhoritios (Includes service tax credit and VATAGST recoverablc) k| 2
Prepald axgansas 174 124

201 176




Rajaathan Sun Techilque Energy Private Limited
Notes to tho financlal stataments as of and for the yaar ended March 31, 2018 {continued)

Rupees In lakhs
As at Asal
March 31, 2010 March 31, 2017
3,10  Bhare capltal
Authorlsed
4,000,000 (March 31, 2017: 4,000,000) equity sharvs of Rs. 10 each 400 400
400 400
issuad, subscribed and pakd up capital
2,856 350 (March 81, 2017: 2.856,350) equity shares of Rs 10 sach fully pald-up 286 288
286 286
8.10.1 Reconcillatlon of number of shares
Equity sharea
Dalancs at the beginning of the yaar - 2,856,360 (March 31, 2017: 2,856,350) shares ol Rs. 10 aach 285 286
Balancae at (he ond of the year - 2,856,350 {March 31, 2017: 2,856,350) sharas of Rs. 10 each 286 286

3.10.2 Rights, preference and restriction attached to equity sharos

Equity shares

The Company has only one class of enully sfiares having par vallie of Rs.10 per share. Each holdar of the €qulty shase Is entitled to ane yote per share. in the
event of llguidatlon of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitiet to recalve tha ramainling assels of ihe Company, after dislifbution of all
preferonllal amounts.

3.10.3 Sharee held by Holding Company
Equily shares
Rellanca Power Limlied - Hokfing Comgany 286 206
2,856,950 (March 31, 2017: 2,856,350) ehares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

(Out of the abova 2,656,340 (Maych 31, 2017 2,856,349) equily shares arz by Rellance Power Limiteo,
the Holding Company and 1 Equily Share was fointly held by Rellancse Pawer Limitcd and its Nomineas)

286 288
3.10.4 Detalls of shares held by shareholders hofding more than 8% of the eggregate sharas In the Company
Equity ghares
Equity shares of Rs.10 sach fully pald up held by Reliance Power Limiled - Holclng Company
Percentage of hotding In the class 100% 100%

Numbe: of shares 28,563,500 28,563,500



Rajasthan Sun Yechnigue Enor\gyl_r’ri\}_ate Limlted
Notee 1o tho financlal gtate menis as of and for the yeur ended March 81, 2018 (continued)

Rupees In lakhs
As el As al

Partlculurs March 31, 2018 Mnrch 31, 2017
2.11.1 Other equity
Balance al the end of the year
3.11.1 Inatruiment entiraly sgulty In natore
Preference Shares 29 29
Inter-comporato depoyits E8010 54,440
68,038 54,519
3.11.4.1 Praference Bhures
Authorsed
14,000,000 {Ma-ch 31, 2017: 10,000,000) preference sharas of Rs. 1 each 100 100
100 100
Issued, subgcribed and paid up capilel
2,856,350 (March 31, 2017; 2,856,350) shares of Re. § each 20 29
28 28
Reconclilation of number of shares
Preforance shares [refer nota . 3.11.1.1(a)]
Bakince gt the beginning of the ycar
2,8E6.350 (March 81, 2017: 2,868,350) shares of Re. 1 sach 29 28
29 29

3.11.1.1(a)

Balance ul the and of the year - 2,656,360 (March 31, 2017: 2,056,350) shares of Rs. 1 cach

Terms/ rights atiached to prefarance eharos

7.8% Compulsary Convertible Redeemable Non-Cirmulafive Prefcrence Shares (CCRPS)

The Cempany shall have & cell opticn on CCRPS which ¢an b2 excrcisen by the Compgaay In sne of morc lnanches and in parf or 11 full befcre the end
of agresd tenure (20 yrars) of Ine 9&ld ahares. In caze the: call oplion Is exerctsad, CCRPS shall be redeemct] ot an Issue price (l.a face va'ue and
pramium), The holders of CCRPS howevar, shali have an oplion to convert CCRPS Wnlo aqu ty shaccs et any time during he tenure of such shares, At
tha and ¢f tenure and to the exlent tha Gompany or the sharaho!der hag not exercised thelr cplions, CCRES shall be compulgorily convearted into
enUity sha'cs. On convaralon, in aithes case, each CORFPE shll be converted Into one fully paid squily ghare of Rs. 10 each at 4 premium of Rs. D30
sharc. If during (he tenura of CCRPS, the Company doclares eqully dividend, GCRP8 holaers shall also be enthied to dividend on ¢hel sharcs at Ihe
same rale as the equity dividend and this dividend will be vver and above the coupon rale of 7.6%, Theas preleranca shares shali conlinue lo be nea
ciinuletive.

Datails of shiares held by shareholders holding more then 5% of Lhe aggragate shares in tho Company
Preference shares [refrr note no. 3.11.1.1(a)]

Prafareace Shzres of R9, 1 each fully pald up held by Roliance Power Limiled - Holding company
Pereantage of holding In tha dass 100% 100%
Numher of sharas 2,056,350 2,856,350

Rupees In lekha
Asat As at
Varch 24, 2018 March 31, 2017

3.11.4.2 Inter Corporate Drposit [refer noly 9)
Cpening hafance 54,400 35,980
Add : received during the year 13,520 18,510
B8 010 64,490
4141.2  Reserves and surplus
Balanca at the ond of the vear
Sacuiti2s premiarn Becount 56,714 54,714
Relained eamings 8,136 6,600
Total resarves and surplus 64,050 66,314
3.14.2.4 Securities premium account (rafer note 3.11.2.3) 36,714 68,714
3.11.2.2 Retained carnings

Balance at trie peginning of the yaar 8,600 9814

Proflli (Loss) for the year (464) 1,211y
Balance al Ihe end of (he yaar 0,136 8,800
132,888 119,833

3.11.23 Natuce and purpose of othar raserves:
Sceuritlea pramium account

Scoully Premium account is for premlum on lesue of sharas. Tha reserve would be ullised in accordanca with lhe provision of the Gompanles Acl,

2013,



Rajasthan Sun Technlque Energy Privale Limited
Notas lo Lhe finenclat statemewts us of and for the yaar ended March 34, 2018 (continued)
Rupens In lakhs

As at As 8t
Particailars Marcti 31, 2018 March 31 7017
FInanclal Liablltjus
342 Barrowlnas - Non-current
Becured - at amortisod cast
Term leans:
Ralpee loans from tanks 7,884 8,780
Forelgn currency laane trom financlul Instituticv olher parties 116,880 125,854
124,564 134 650

3.12.1 Nature of securily:

a) Term loans balance from alt banks, financla! inslitutlor vithor parlles of Rs. 137,924 |akhes (Marchi 31, 2017 1 IRs.140,072 lak1a) Is socured! (o ke
secured by firsl charge on gl the Immovable and movable asscls of {he Compasty an parl passu basks nd pliedge of 100% of the (olal issued shers
capllal of the Company held by the Holdng Compsiy.

b) The Holdirg Company has given finandal commitmends/ guaraitees fo the landar of tho Compmny. ([Rafer Note 9.

) Cumrent malurltivs of [ong tarm bomrowings hava bean clagsifled as ather currant liabliitles (Refer Note 3.15)

3.12.2 Terms of repayment of loans and rate of Interest:

a) The Rupee loan has a lenare of upto 16 yoars from the dete of first disbursement will be repeld In 54 unequall quarterly nslalinents starting from
January 07, 2014 and Interest rato is a floaling rale linked 1o Axis Bank basc rate plug 5%, payabls oa monthly basls, The outstending balance as on
year end |3 Rs.0,978 lakhs (March 31, 2017 Rs.9,725 lakhs).

b) Forelgn currency loan fram financial Inetilution/ other pertles of has a fenurc of uplo 17.38 years from the date of first disburszment. It will be repaid n
33 unequal liolf yaarly Instalments starting from Januery 25, 2014 and cany fixcd of 2.58% per annum peyabio hall yearly. The outstanding balanco as
on year end 19 Rs. 25,866 kakhs (Varch 31, 2017 Rs. 27,644 Iskhs).

¢} Foreign cuirency loan fram financial Insti‘utlon/ ollier parfles has a tenure of upto 17.45 years from the date of firet disbursement, It will ba repald In 33
uncqusl hell yoarly nstaiments stariag from January 7, 2014 and cany Inkeres| rale of LIBOR plus 365 basls polnts per annum payatle half yeady.
The oulstanding Ealance as on year ond ks Ra. 48,007 lakhs (March 31, 2017 Rs.52,903 lekhs ).

d) Forsign curency loan from fnancial institution/ olher perifes has a tanure of uplo 1445 years from Ihe date of first d.sbursemsnt. It wil be repald o 27
unequal half yearly Instalmants staring from January 7, 2014 and carry fixcd interesl rale of 5.95% par annum., payable heif yearly. Tha suisianding
balance ag on year end Is Rs. 45,064 lakhs (March 31, 2017 Rs. 49,018 lakhs ).

€) Foreign currency loan from firanctal Instituliory other partlas has a lenure of uplo 17.63 years from the date of first disbursemant. B will be repaid In 33
unequal hall yearly instaiments sterting from Fabrwary 6, 2014 and carry fixed interesi rata of 7.1% per annum, peyeble half yeary. The oulstanding
bulance as on year end 15 Rs,B8,422 lakhs (March 37, 2017 Rs. B,891 lakhs).

3.12.3 The amoilised cost disclosed ahove ks n=t off Inddental cost of borrowings aggregeting of Re. 2,477 lakhs (March 31, 2017 Rs. 2,868 lakhs).

3.13  Provisions - Nen-currcnt

Prowvislken for gratully (refar nole 7) 37 40
Provislon for leave entitlement {refar notc 7) 32 a5
69 75

3.4 Other llabliitles - Non-cumront

Advance apanst cartified emmission raduciion 53 1460
983 1,466
315 Other financial llablilles - Current
Currenl maturitias of fong-hrm berrowings 10,783 1C.654
Interast azcrired bud not due an bormowings 1,483 1470
intares! ocuced and due an borrowings 80 -
Scourly ceposis recalved - k3
Credltors for capltal cxpendilure 708 511
Relenion money payable (refar nots 6) 6608 5,607
Dues to Holding Company (refer note B) 190 -
Deurivetive llahliitiss (Merk to Merket) on darivaiive Instrumaonts (Nety - 62
Ofher payabks 162 152
19,115 18,305

3.16  Othor Rabilities - Current

Advanze against ocriilliod emmission raductian 206 329
Otlhear payab'es” 48 46
“lincfuding provident fuad, tax deducted at source and olher miscaliansous payablus)
342 174
3.47  Provislons - Currcnt
Provislon for gralutly (refar note 7) "
Provision for lsave entillement (refer note 7) 11 1
22 18
3.48  Curront tax ftablillty
Pravislon for Incgme dax:(refarnctnd ) - 292

Jac :




Rajasthan Sun Technique Encrgy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018 {(continued)

Particulars

3.19 Other income

Interest Income:
Bank depaosits
Cther

3.20 Finance cost

3.21

Net loss on setilement and fair value change arising on
derivative contracts '

Generation, administration and other expenses

Rent expenses
Repairs and maintenance
- Others
Legal and professional charges (including shared service
charges)
Postage and telephone
Rates and taxes
Miscellancous expenses

Rupess In lakhs

Year cnded
March 31, 2018

Year ended
March 31, 2017

651 674
- 23
651 687
916 1,779
916 1,779
24 -
2 -
4 -
4 -
13 -
37 -

84




Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018 (continued)

4) Project status

The planl is baing set up on a solar energy source of first of its kind in the country and also infernationally, based on
data base about Direct Normal Irradiance (DNI) as provided by the Govisrnment sources then. Based on actual DNI
available and other {echnical issues the plant has been opergting irreguriarly with interruptions. The Company Is
relenllessly engaged with the experts and erection, procurement and construction contractor in the field and
undertaking addiltonal improvemenl measures in the plant 1o achieve augmented generation thereby attaln desirable
output. Management Is confident to achieve the intended capacily in coming quarters,

Considering these facts, pre-operative expenses which are directly atfributable to the construction of the asset for
its intended use, are belng capitalized and revenue generated is nelled off from expenditure. Further, the Company
hasg also assessed the estimaled value in use of the project. Based on the assessments, involving an expert, the
Company has concluded that there is no need for any impairment,

5) Contingent llabllities and commitments

(a) The Gompany has declared its Concentrated-Solar Power (CSP) plant as commercially operational (COD) on
November 17, 2014 against the scheduled commissioning date (SCI) of March 07, 2014 as per the terms of
Powar Purchase Agreement (PPA). Gompany has filed a petitlon before Central Electricity Regulatory
Commission (CERC) for extenslan of SCD. Pleadings in the said petilion have been complefed and the matter is
listed for hearing.

(b) As per ihe terms of the PPA entered with NTPC Vidyut Vyapar Nigam Limited (NVVN). the Company was
required fo generate minimum commifted energy n the contract year subsequent to declaration of commercial
operation date (COD). The Company has received a demand of Rs 8,536 lakhs (as on March 31, 2017 of Rs.
8,536 lakhs) towards shortfall in minimum energy supply for period from November 17, 2014 (date of COD as
per the terms of PPA) to March 31, 2016. In the responsa to said demand, the Company has communicaled
NVVN that lhe shortfali is due to factors beyend the conirol of the Company. Moreover, in the matter of
petitions filed by olher CSP developers against the compensation claimed by NVVN due to shortfall in minimum
energy supply, CERC has ruled that NVVN and lhe distribution cemparies are not entitled 1o raise any claim
from the CSP developer unless they prove that they suffered loss by the way of penalty from the State
Electicily Regulatory Commission (SERC) on account of non-compliance of Renewable Purchase Obligation
(RPO) dus to shortfall generation. It is to be noted that NVVN has nof submitted any proof of claim received
from any Distribution Company (Discom) an account of penalty imposed by respective SERC on the Discom
due 1o non-compliance of RPO.

Considering the said facts and the lerms of the PPA, lhe Company has dispuled {he demand raised and no
provision has been made in the finandial statements for the said pericd and the current financial year.

Future cash flows in respect of the above matter can only be determined based on the future outcome of
various uncertain factors..

(c) Estimaled amount of contracts remalning unexecuted on capitai accounl {nel of advances paid) and not
provided for Rs. Nif lakhs (March 31, 2017 Rs. 1,538 lakhs).

6) Detalls of remuneration to auditors:
Rupees In lakhs

| _Year ended Year ended
o March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
a) As auditorg
For statutory audit* 16 32
For others services o 43 1
(b) Qut-of-pocket expenses ) (@) 1
| *The above amounts are exclusive of taxes |

@ Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.
7) Employee benefit obligations

The Company has classified various employee benefits as under:
a) Leave obligations

The leave obligations cover the Company liabilily for sick and privileged leave.
Rupees in lakhs

TProyisipreforteaa gncashmont March 31, 2018 1 Wlarch 31, 2017
2 T{Q@,—r s N 11| 11
4 Ngrcurrent - 32—| 35

@ ﬁfﬁér(y:docstrmlejhaa]u]]ncondilional fight to defer the settlements.
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Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018 (continued)

b)

c)

Defined contribution plans
(i) Provident fund
(i) Superannuation fund
(iii) State defined contribution plans
- Employees’ Penslon Scheme 1995
The provident fund and the state defined contribution plan are operated by the regional provident fund commissionsr
and the superannuation fund is administered by ihe trust. Under the schemnes, the Company is required to contribute
a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit schemes fo fund the benefits.

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Capital work-in-progress for the year:
Rupees in lakhs

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
() Contribution lo provident fund 13 15 |
i) Confribution to employees’ superannualion fund 2 ) 3
i) Contribution 1o employees’ penston scheme 1665 . 9 10
iv) Contribution to employees’ deposit linked Insurance scheme 1 2]

Post employment obligation

Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefil plan in India, governed by the Payment of Gralully Acl, 1872. The plan entitle an
employees, who has rendered sl least-five years of coniinuous service, 1o gratuily at the rate of fiftean days basic
salary for every completed years of services or part thereof in excess of six months, based on the rate of basis salary
last drawn by the employee concerned.

() Significant estimates: actuaral assumptions

Veluations In respect of gratuity have been carrled oul by an independent actuary, as at the Balance Sheet date,
based on the following assumptions:

Particulars | March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
| Discount rale (per annum) 7.65 % 7.05%
Rate of increase in compensation lsvels 7.50% 7.50%
| Rale of retum on plan assets 7.85 % 7.05%
Expected average remaining working lives of 5.26 10.22
employees in humber of years

The estimate of rele of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account inflation, seniority,
promotlon and other relevant factors Including supply and demand in the employment rmarket,

@ Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.

(i) Balance sheet amount (Gratuity Plan)
Rupees in lakhs

Particulars Pmss;;;:z:)l:f o | e V:;Z:;f plan Net amount

| Balance as on March 31, 2016 ' ] 27 - 27
Current service cost 6 _ - 6
Interestcos! 2 - 2 |
Total amount recogniscd In profit and loss / Capital

| work-in-progress 8 - B |
Remecasuraments
Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in
interest expense/(income) - - -
Galn) / logs from change in demographic assumptlons ) - - -
(Gain) / loss from change n flnancial assuimplions 4 - | 4
Experience (gains) / losses ) 8 - f 8
Total amount recognised in other comprehenslve
Incotne / Capital work-In-progress 12 - 12
Employer contributions : - ' -
Benefit payments . - il -
Balance as on March 31, 2017 ] , 47 - 47 |

s MmO
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Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018 (continued)

__Rupses in lakhs
Present value of | Fair value of plan
Net amount

Partleulars

obligation assels .
| Balance as on March 31, 2017 ) AT - 47
Currenl service cost . 10 - 10 |
Interest cost 3 - 3
Total amount recognlsed in profit and loss / Capital
work-in-progress 4 13 - 13
Remeasurements

Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in
interesl expense/(income} - -

(Galn) / logs from change in demographlec assumptions (8) - (8)—

(Gain) ! loss from change in financial assumptions (2) - (2

Experience (galns) / losses 16 - 16 |

Total amaunt recognised in other comprehensive

Income J Capital work-in-progress 6 - 6

Employer contributions (18) - [18)

Benefit payments - - -
| Balance as on March 31, 2018 48 - 48

The net fiability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows:
Rupees in lakhs

March 31, 2017

Particulars March 31, 2018

Present value of funded obligations - .
[Fair value of plan assels - -
Deficit of gratulty plan - -

Unfunded plans } 40 47
Deficit of gratuity plan 48] 47

(iii) Sensitivity analysis:

The sensitivity of the defined bencfit obllgation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

\ Change in assumpflons l Increase in assumplions Decrease in assumptions
March | March March
Particulars March | March March
31,2018 31,2017 31, 2018 31,2017 31, 2018 31,2017
Discount rate 050% |  050%|  -2.42% -5.23% 254 % 5.71%
Rate of increase In
compensation levels | 0.50% 0.50% 2.54 % 5.66% 244 % | -5.24%

The above sensitivily analyses are based on a change in an assumption whiic holding all other assumptions constant. in
practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated, When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant acluarial assumptions the same method (present value of the
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit methad at the end of the reporting period) has been
applied as when calculaling the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet. The methods and types of
assumplions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did nol change compared 1o the prior period.

For unfunded plan, the Company has no compulsion to pre fund the liability of the plan. The Company’s policy is not to
externally fund these liabilities but instead recognizes the provision and pay the gratuily to its employees directly from its
own resources as and when the employee leaves the Company.




Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited
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8) Assets pledged as security

Rupces in lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2018

“March 31, 2017

Non-current

Financlal assets

First charge

| Derivative Instrumenls 739 1,104
Logan 4 4
Non-finanlal assets j
First charge \

|_Properly, plant and equipment . 2646 2,833

! Capital work-in-progress 251,408 248,308

_Other Intangible assets 23 SZ‘
Other non-current asseds 5,804 7,831

_mlal Non-current assets pledged as securi \ 260,714 260,140
Current
Financial assels

_First charge _
Trade recelvables 5,065 4,637
Cash and bank balances 11,015 10,286
Loans 144 5
Other financlal asssls 850 -

_Non-financial assets
Inventories 240 -

Dther current assets 201 178
Total non-current assets pledged as security 17,520 15,104
Total assets pledged as security 278,234 | - 275,244 |
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Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018 (cantinued)

9} Related party transactions:
A. Investing Parties/Promoters having significant influence on the Company directly or indirectly

Companies
Reliance Infrastructure Limited (R Infra)

Individual
Shri Anil D. Ambanl (Chairman)

B. Parties where control exists:

Holding Company
Reliance Power Limited (RPower}

Fellow subsidiaries:

Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited (DSPL)
Rosa Power Supply Company Limited (RPSCL)
Sasan Power Limited (SAPL)

Samalkot Power Limited (SMPL)

Vidharbha Industries Power Limited (VIPL)

C | Details of transactions durlng the year and closing balance at the end of the year:
Rupees in lakhs
March 31, 2018 { March 31, 2017

]

{i} | Transactions during the year:

Relmbursement of expenses and advances by

|| - RPower 190 107_
- SAPL ) - @
- RPSCL ) - @

| " Material / Service received _ _ ]
- VIPL 26 X

Matcrlal 7 Service provided

S VIPL 55 -
- Rnfra 103 . -
Material / Service bilied against EPC Contract _ ]
- Rinfra ‘ 2 669 2,047

Legal and Professional charges paid towards
shared services
- R Power - 58

Inter corporate deposit received _
- R Power 13,520 18,510
@ Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.
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Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018 (continued)

Rupees in lakhs
March 31, 2018 ; March 31, 2017

(i) | Closing Balance :

Equity share capltal (excluding premlum) o
- R Power 286 286

Preference sharc capltfal {excluding premium)
- RPower ) 29 29

Rotention payable towards EPC
-RInfra ] 5,572 5,532 |

Other current financlal Assets
- R Infra 103 _ -

_Other current liabilitics ]
- R Power . . 190 -

Advance against EPC contract
- Rinfra ) 5,894 7,831

Inter corporate-deposit payable
- R Power 68,010 64,490

Guarantees Issued on behalf of the Company
- R Power ' \ 11,471 11,471

(i) The Holding Company has enlered Into agreements with the lenders of the Company wherein it has committed
to extend financia! support in the form of equity or debt as per the agreed means of finance, in respect of the
project being undertaken, including hedging support, investment suppor and projcct cost overrun support.

(lv) The above disclosures do not include transactions with public utility service providers, viz, electricity,
telecommunications in the normal course of business.

{v) The Gompany has entered inlo a memarandum of understanding for sharing of certain assets belween the
Company and DSPL.

10) Earningst {Loss) per share:

. Year ended Year ended

| Particulars _ ‘March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017
Profit avallable to equity shareholders
Net profit after (ax (A) (Rupees in lakhs) B (464) (1,211)
Weighted average number of equity shares (B) 2,856,350 2,856,350
Basic earnings per sharc [A/B) {(Rupees) (16.25) (42.39) |
Weighled average number of potential equity shares on account of conversion 2,856,350 2,856,350
of preference shares (G) L
Weighted average number of shares for Diluted EPS(D=B+C) 3 5,712,700 5,712,700
Diluted earnings per share (A/D) { Rupees)* (16.25) ~ (42.39)
Nominal value of an equily share (Rupees) ) 10 10

*7.5% compulscry convertible redeemable non-cumulalive preference shares had anll-dilulive effect on carnings per share
and have not been considered for the purpose of computing diluted earnings per share,



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018 (continued)

11) Income taxes

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2018 eand March 31, 2017 are as under;

(2) Income tax recognised in statement of profit and loss

Rupees in 1akl£|

Particulars

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017 |

Income tax expense

Cursent tax

Current tax on profit for the year

T

Income tax expenses

-1

(b} The reconciliation of tax expense and the aceounting profit multiplicd by tax rate :

Rupees in lakhs

| Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31,2017 |
Profit before {ax (A) (465) {1,212) |
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 34.608% (161 (418) |
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible(iaxable) in
calculating taxable income:
Tax impact on disaliowed expenses (net) 1681 | 419

| Income tax expense

[ (c) Tax liabilities/ (Agsets):

Rupees In lakhs '

| Provigion for income tax {advance {ax) — Opening balances 202 | 178
Taxes pald (net of refund) ) 114
Current tax payable for the year - -
Excess provislan written off (428) -

. Provision for income tax (advance tax) — Closing balances. (136) 292

*The unused tax losses were incurred which is not likely o generate taxable income in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018 (continued)

12} Fair value measurcments

{a)

Financial instruments by category

Rupees in fakhs

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

|

Amortised Amortised
FVPL cost FVPL cost

Financlal assets |
Security Depasit - 153 - 153

LDerivatJ've assels 1,489 - 1,104 -
Trade receivables - 5065 - 4,637 |
Cash and cash equivalents - 457 - 332
Bank depaslts with more than 12 - 10,558 - 5,954
months maturity

| Loans / advances to employees - - - ) |
Other receivables - 100 - -

L*réytan financial assets 1,483 15,333 1,104 16,081
Financlal liabilities
Borrowings - 136,990 - 148,682
Other current financial liablities - (6,789 - 8305
Derlvatives Llabililies 3 - 62
Total financlal llabilities - 143,779 62 152,987

{b) Falr value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made In determining the fair values of the financial Instruments that
are {a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed
in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the
Company has classlified Its finandial instruments Into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An

explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

[ Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

- recurring fair value measurements as at March 31,
2018

Leval 1 F Level 2

Level 3

Rupees In lakhs

Total

Financial assets

| Derivatives

1,488

1488 |

Total financial asséu;

1,488

1,488

Financlal liabilities

Denvatives

Total financlal liabilities

Rupees in lakhs

[ Assets and liabilities which arc measurad at
amortiscd cost for which falr values are disclose as
at March 31, 2018

Level 1

Levol 2 [ Level 3

Toftal

Financlal assets

Securily deposits

E-N

4 |

Total financlal assets

4

| Financial Liabllitles

Borrowings

141,677

141,877 |

_Total financial llabllities

141,677

141,677 |
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Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018 (continued)

Rupees In lakhs

Financial asscts and liabilities measured at fair value - Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
recurring falr value measurements as at March 31,
2017 i _

Elnancial assefs \
Derivatives - ‘ 1,104 - 1,104 |
Total financial agsets - 1,104 - 1,104
Financial liablilitles
Derivalives ' - 62 - 82

| Total financial liabilities - 82 - 62 |

- Rupees in lakhs
Assets and liabiliies which are measurad at Level 1 | Lewvel?2 Level 3 Total 7
amortlsed cost for which fair values are disclose as at

March 31, 2017

Financial assets -

Security deposiis - - 4 4
Total financial assets - - 4 | 4
Financlal Liabilities _ |
Borrowings - 148,617 - 148,617
Total financlal liabilities | - 148,617 . 148,617

(c) Vsluation processes

The Company obtains assistance of independent and competent third party valuation experts to perform the valuations of
financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporling purposes, including level 3 fair velues. Discussions of
valuation processes and resulls are held between the Company and {he valuer on periodically basis.

Discount rates are delermined using a capital asset pricing model to calculate a pre-tax rate that refiects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

(d) Falr value of financlal assets and liabilitics measured at amortised cost
Rupees In lakhs

| 3 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Carrying Carrylng .

L amount Falr value amount Fair valuc |
Financial Assets _ J

\ Security deposits 4 4 4 4
Total financlal assets 4 4 4 4
Financial Liabilitics N i )
Borrowings” - 136,800 141,677 146,682 148 617
Total financlal liabilities 136,990 141,677 146,662 - 148,817

*Carrying amount of borrowing includes long term borrowing, current maturity of long term borrowing and interest accrued
but not due on borrowing.

The carrying amouni of current financlal assets and liabililies (other than current maturity of long femrm borrowing and
interest accrued bul not due on borrowing which have been considered as part of borrowing) are considered to be the
same as thelr fair values, due to their short term nature.

The fair value of the long-term Bormowings with floating-rate of interest is not impacisd due to interest rate changes, and
will not be significantly different from their carrying amounts as there is no significant change in the under-lying credit risk
of the Company borrowing (since the date of inception of the loans).

For financial assets and liabilities that are measures al fair value, the carrying amount Is equal fo the fair values.
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Note
Level 1 : Level 1 hierarchy Includes financial insiruments measured using quoted prices,

Level 2: The fair value of financial Instruments that are nol traded in an acfive market (for example over-the-countsr
derivalives) is determined using valuation technigues which maximise the uge: of observable market data and rely as litlle
as possible on entily-speciic eslimaltes. i all significant Inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3; If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the Instrument is included in level
3. This is the case for unlisted squily securrities which are included in level.

There were no transfers between any levels during the year.

The Company's policy is to recognise transfer info and transfer out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year endsd March 31, 2018 (continued)

(i) Maturities of Financial liabllities

The amounts disclosed In the below are {he contractual undlscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12
months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting Is not significant.

Rupees in lakhs

>ss than 1 een 1y More
aren 1, 2010 e sy "pwen® T rou
Non-dervatlves Finangial liabilities ~
Borrowings* 18,069 89,880 54,458 182,187
| Creditors for capital expendifure 709 - - 709
Retention money payable 5,698 - - 5,608
Dues to Holding Companies 190 190
Other financla! liabilities 192 - - 192
Total Non-derivatives Financial
llabilities 24,858 69,660 94,458 189,876
L Rupees In lakhs
Less 1 B r than 5
March 31, 2017 e than 1| Botween 1 vear [ More tha Total |
Non-derijvatives Financial liabilities
Botrowings* 18,123 68,807 110,065 198,096
Security doposits recelved 35 - - 35 |
Credilors for capital expenditure 511 - - 611
Retention money payable 5,607 - - 5,607
Other financial liabililies 152 | - - 152
Total Non-derivatives Financlal
| liabilities 24,428 69,907 110,065 204,401
Derivatives Financial liabilitles }
Forward
Inflow o (1,203) - - (1,203)
| Outflow - 1,267 - - 1,267
| Total Derivatives Financial llabllities 64 - - 64

*Includes contractual inlerest payments based on {he interest rate prevailing at the reporting date.

(¢) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the falr values of future cash flows of a financial instrument will flucluate because of
volatilily of prices in the financlal markets. Markef risk can be further segregated es: a) Foreign cunrency risk and

b) Interest rate nsk.

(i) Forcign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has long term monetary liabilities which are in
currency other than its functional currency. Foreign currency risk, as defined in Ind AS 107, arises as the value of
racognised monetary assets and monetary liabililies denominated in ather currendies fluctuate due to changes In

foreign exchange rates.

While the Company has direct exposure 1o foreign exchange rate changes on the price of non-Indian Rupee-
denominated borrowings. For that reason, the betow sensilivity analysis may not necessarily indicate the total
effect on the Company’s netl assets aitributable to halders of equity shares of future movements Ih foreign

exchange rates.
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¢ Foreign currcney risk sxposure:

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk (all in USD §) at the end of the reporting period expressed In
INR, are as follows.
Rupees In lakhs

March 31,2018 | Warch 31, 2017 |

Financial liabllitles

Borrowings 130430 | 138,824

Relention money 2472 2,464 |
| Commitment Fees - | 22

Total Flnancial liabilities 132,902 142,310

Covered by Derivative

Forward contracts 3132 8,188
|_Call spread 13,659 | 16,237
Cross Currancy Swap 7,470 8,078
Total Covered by derivatives 24,261 31,504
Net exposure fo foreign currency risk (liabilities) 108,641 110,808 !

» Sensitivity of foreign currency exposure

The sensitivity of profit or loss 10 changes in the exchange rates arise:s mainly from foreign curency denominated
financial instruments.

[ Impact on profit before tax /

Capltal work-in- progress**
March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017

' usp gensitivity .
FX rate —increase by 6% on closing rate on reporting date* (6,991 (7.338
FX rate— decrease by 8% on closing rate on reporting date * 6,842 7,220 |

* Holding all other variables constant

*The ebove impact has been assessed taking inte consideration the accounting pollcy adopted by the Company
for the accounting for forelgn exchange differences. (Refer note 2.1(m) above).
\

(1) Interest rate risk

The Company’s main interest rate risk arises from long-ferm borrowings with variable rates, which expose the
Company to cash flow interest rate risk. During March 31, 2017 the Company's borrowings at variable rate
were mainly denominated in USD.

The Caompany's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amaortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest
rafe risk as defined In ind AS 107, since neither the camying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate
because of a change in market interest rates.

» [Interest rate risk exposture
The exposure of the Company’s botrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:
Rupees in lakhs
March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017
Variable rate borrowings 57,252 61,852

» Sensitivity of Interest

Profit or loss Is sensitive 1o higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in Interest rates.
Rupees in lakhs
Impact on profit before tax

March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017

UsbD scﬁsiﬁvitL _
Interest rates — Increase by 5% an existing Interest cost® (178) @6_)1
Interest rates — decrease by 5% on existing Interest cost* perni) 178 | 166
* Holding all other varlables congfant- ' LN
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Notes to the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018 (continued)

14) Capital Management

(a) Risk Management

Tha Company's objectives when mianaging capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to contintie as a going
concem in order fo provide retums for shareholders and benefits for athor stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capilal structure to reduce the cost of capita!l. In order to maintain or adjusi the capital structure, the Gompany may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital 1o shereholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debl.

The Company monitors caplital on basis of total equity and debt on a periodic basis. Equity comprises all components
of squity includes the fair value impact. The following table summarizes the capital of the Company:

Rupeses in lakhs

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Equity (excluding other reserves) | 133,175 120,118
Debt 135,447 145,204
Total 268,622 265,323

(b) The Company is generally regular in payment of Its debt service obligation.

15) Segment reporting
Presently, the Company is engaged in only one segment viz ‘Generation of Power' and as such there is no gseparate
reportable ssgment as per Ind AS 108 'Operating Segmenits'. Presently, the Company’s cperations are predominantly
confined in india.

Information about major customers
Revenue for the year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 were from customers located in India. Customers

include private dlstribution entities. Revenue to specific customers exceeding 10% of total revenue for the years
ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 were as follows (refer note 2{p)(i):

| March 31, 2018 _ March 31, 2017
. F Revenue In lakhs | _ Percent | Revenue In lakhs Percent
| NTPC Vidyut Viyapar Nigam Limited | 10,438 | 100% 7,585 100% |

18) Exchange Difference on Long Term Monetary items

As explained above in note 2,1(m) with respect to exchange differences, the Company has adjusted the value of
Cspital work-in-progress by Rs. 335 lakhs (loss) (March 31, 2017 is Rs, 3,051 lakhs (Gain) towards the exchange
difference arising on long term foreign currency monetary liabilttics towards depreciable assets,

17) The information for Self- generated Gerlified Emission Reductions (CERSs) relating 1o certified emission rights are as

follows:-

Sr. Particulars For the year ended [For the year ended
No. 31st March 2018 31st March 2017
a) No. of CERs held as inventory and the - -

basis of valuation

b No. of CERs under certification 82,718 -
¢} Depreciation and operating and - -

rmaintenance cosis of Em/ssion Reduction
equipment expensed during the year

18) Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Disclosure of amounts payable to vendors as defined under the "Nilere, Small and Medium Enterprise Development
Act, 2006" Is based on the information avallable with the Company regarding the status of registration of such
vendors undaer he seid Act. There are no overdus principal amounts / interest payable amounts for delayed payments
to such vendors 2t the Balance Shecet date. There are no delays In paymeri made to such suppliers during lhe year or
for any earlier years and accordingly there is no interest paid or outstanding interest In this regard in respect of
payments made during the year or broughl forward from ptevious years.
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19) Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilltles

The following table presents the derivative financial instruments that are offset as at March 31, 2018 and, March 31,
2017 where as per {he tenmns of the agreement the nel position owing / raceivable to a single counterparty in the same
currency has baan offselled and presented at net amount in {he balance sheel.

_ Rupees in Iakhs;l
Particulars Gross amounts Gross amount setf- | Net balance
off in balance sheet | presented In balance
_ ] sheet
As at March 31, 2018
| Financial Liablilties
Derlvative Liabilities {481) 491 -
Total Financial Liabllltles _ (491) R 491 _ -
Financial Assets |
Derlvative Assels 1,979 (491) | 1,488 |
Total Financlal Assets ) 1,979 [491) 1,488
As at March 31, 2017
Financial Liabifities a
Derivative Liabllities (957) 895 (62)
Total Financial Liabilities (957 895 (62} |
Financial Assets
Derivatlve Assets 1,999 (895 1,104 |
_Tota! Financial Assets 1,999 (895) 1,104 |

20) Disclosure pursuant to para 44 A to 44 E of Ind AS 7 - statement of cash flows
Rupees in lakhs

’——' ' Year ended
Partlculars March 31,2018
Long Term Borrowings
Opening Balance _
- Non Current [ 134,650 |
- Current 10,654
| Changes in Fair Value
- Impaet of Effective Rate of Interest 390 |
- Exchange (galn) / loss ) 326
Repaid during the yoar/period ) (10,473)
Closing Balance : _
- Non Cumrent 124,664
?Current 10,783
Interest Expenses ]
Interest accrued but not due on borrewings (Opening) 1,478
interest Charge as per Stalement Profit & Loss / Capital work [n progress 9,001
|Changes in Fair Value
- Impact of Effective Rafe of Interest {390) |
|- _Impact of MTM Derivalive valuation 446
Interest paid fo Lenders (8,992)
| Interest accrued but not dus/ and due on borrowings @Iosing) 1,643

21) The Company does not fulfils the eligibilily criteria for corporate social respionsibility set out In Section 135 of the Act.

22) The figures for the previous year are re-classified / re-grouped, wherever considered necessary.
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